2000

Meadow Valley Contractors, Inc. v. Transcontinental Insurance Company : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF THE APPELLATE COURT

This Court has jurisdiction in this matter pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78-2-2(3)(k), 1953 as amended.

ISSUES FOR REVIEW

Did the trial court err in granting summary judgment to Meadow Valley where genuine issues of material fact precluded summary judgment. This issue was preserved for appeal (R. 151-168.)(R. 224 pages 1-21.)

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, ORDINANCES, RULES AND REGULATIONS WHOSE INTERPRETATION IS DETERMINATIVE OF THE APPEAL

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 56. Summary Judgment.

(a) *For claimant.* A party seeking to recover upon a claim, counterclaim or cross-claim or to obtain a declaratory judgment may, at any time after the expiration of 20 days from the commencement of any the action or after service of a motion for summary judgment by the adverse party, move with or without supporting affidavits for a summary judgment in his favor upon all or any part thereof.

(b) *For defending party.* A party against whom a claim, counterclaim or cross-claim is asserted or declaratory judgment is sought, may, at any time, move with or without supporting affidavits for a summary judgment in his favor as to all or any part thereof.

(c) *Motion and proceedings thereon.* The motion, memoranda and affidavits shall be filed and served in accordance with CJA 4-501. The judgment sought shall be rendered if the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as matter of law. A summary judgment, interlocutory in character, may be rendered on the issue of liability alone although there is a genuine issue as to the amount of damages.

(d) *Case not fully adjudicated on motion.* If on motion under this rule judgment is not rendered upon the whole case or for all the relief asked and a trial is necessary, the court at the hearing of motion, by examining the pleadings and the evidence before it and

by interrogating counsel, shall be if practicable ascertain what material facts exist without substantial controversy and what material facts are actually and in good faith controverted. It shall thereupon make an order specifying the facts that appear without substantial controversy, including the extent to which the amount of damages or other relief is not in controversy, and directing such further proceedings in the action as are just. Upon the trial of the action the facts so specified shall be deemed established, and the trial shall be conducted accordingly.

(e) *Form of affidavits; further testimony; defense required.* Supporting and opposing affidavits shall be made on personal knowledge, shall set forth such facts as would be admissible in evidence, and shall show affirmatively that the affiant is competent to testify to the matters stated therein. Sworn or certified copies of all papers or parts thereof referred to in an affidavit shall be attached thereto or served therewith. The court may permit affidavits to be supplemented or opposed by depositions, answers to interrogatories, or further affidavits. When a motion for summary judgment is made and supported as provided in this rule, an adverse party may not rest upon mere allegations or denials in his pleading, but his response, by affidavits or as otherwise provided in this rule, must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial. If he does not so respond, summary judgment, if appropriate, shall be entered against him.

(f) *When affidavits are unavailable.* Should it appear from the affidavits of a party opposing the motion that he cannot for reasons stated present by affidavit facts essential to justify his opposition, the court may refuse the application for judgment or may order a continuance to permit affidavits to be obtained or depositions to be taken or discovery to be had or may make other order as is just.

(g) *Affidavits made in bad faith.* Should it appear to the satisfaction of the court at any time that any of the affidavits presented pursuant to this rule are presented in bad faith or solely for the purpose of delay, the court shall forthwith order the party employing them to pay to the other party the amount of the reasonable expenses which the filing of affidavits caused him to incur, including reasonable attorney's fees, and any offending party or attorney may be adjudged guilty of contempt.
(Amended effective November 1, 1997.)

Utah Code Ann. § 13-8-1, 1953 as amended.

13-8-1. Construction industry - Agreements to indemnify.

(1) For purposes of this section:

(a) "Construction contract" means a contract or agreement relative to the design, construction, alteration, repair, or maintenance of a building, structure, highway, appurtenance, appliance, or other improvement to real property,

including moving, demolition, or excavating, connected to the construction contract between:

- (i) a construction manager;
- (ii) a general contractor;
- (iii) a subcontractor;
- (iv) a sub-subcontractor;
- (v) a supplier; or
- (vi) any combination of persons listed in Subsections (1)(a)(i) through (v).

(b) "Indemnification provision" means a covenant, promise, agreement or understanding in, in connection with, or collateral to a construction contract requiring the promisor to insure, hold harmless, indemnify, or defend the promisee or others against liability if:

- (i) the damages arise out of:
 - (A) bodily injury to a person;
 - (B) damage to property; or
 - (C) economic loss; and
- (ii) the damages are caused by or resulting from the fault of the promisee, indemnitee, others, or their agents or employees.

(2) Except as provided in Subsection (3), an indemnification provision in a construction contract is against public policy and is void and unenforceable.

(3) When an indemnification provision is included in a contract related to a construction project between an owner and party listed in Subsection (1)(a), in any action for damages described in Subsection (1)(b)(i), the fault of the owner shall be apportioned among the parties listed in Subsection (1)(a) pro rata based on the proportional share of fault of each of the parties listed in Subsection (1)(a) if:

- (a) the damages are caused in part by the owner; and
- (b) the cause of the damages defined in Subsection (1)(b)(i) did not arise at the time and during the phase of the project when the owner was operating as a party defined in Subsection (1)(a).

(4) This section may not be construed to affect or impair the obligations of contracts or agreements, that are in existence at the time this section or any amendment to this section becomes effective.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

INTRODUCTION

This case arises out of a complaint filed by the plaintiff and appellee, Meadow Valley Contractors, Inc., (hereinafter "Meadow Valley") for insurance coverage under an insurance policy issued by Transcontinental Insurance Company (hereinafter "Transcontinental") to BT Gallegos Construction Company, Inc. (hereinafter "BT Gallegos"). Although there are genuine issues of material fact which precluded summary judgment in this case, the trial court granted summary judgment in favor of Meadow Valley and against Transcontinental on March 2, 2000. From that grant of summary judgment, Transcontinental now appeals.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. This case arises out of a complaint filed by Meadow Valley, for insurance coverage under an insurance policy issued by Transcontinental to BT Gallegos. (R. 2-3.)
2. Meadow Valley was the general contractor on a highway construction project located at the I-15/I-215 merge to 2600 South, Woodscross in Davis County, Utah. (R. 54-55.)
3. BT Gallegos was a subcontractor on the same project. (R. 55.)
4. Pursuant to the subcontractors agreement between BT Gallegos and Meadow Valley, BT Gallegos was to purchase an insurance policy covering Meadow Valley for damages arising out of BT Gallegos' work. (R. 71.)

5. BT Gallegos did, in fact, purchase such insurance from Transcontinental.

However, under the terms of the insurance agreement and in compliance with the subcontract agreement, Transcontinental was to cover damages arising out of BT Gallegos' work only. (R. 138.)

6. Specifically, BT Gallegos purchased a blanket additional insured endorsement naming Meadow Valley as an additional insured. (R. 138-139.)

7. The blanket additional insured endorsement does not cover Meadow Valley for any liability arising out of Meadow Valley's, or any other person's work. (R. 138.)

Rather, the blanket additional insured endorsement is limited to liability "arising out of" BT Gallegos' work only. (R. 138.)

8. The language of the blanket additional insured endorsement is as follows:

The insurance provided to the additional insured is limited as follows:

1. That person or organization is only an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of:

- a. Premises you own, rent, lease, or occupy; or
- b. "your work" for that additional insured by or for you.

2. The limits of insurance applicable to the additional insured are those specified in the written contract or agreement or in the declarations for this policy, whichever is less. These limits of insurance are inclusive and not in addition to the limits of insurance shown on the declarations. (R138.)

9. The insurance policy defines "your work" as used in the blanket additional insured endorsement as follows:

"Your work" means:

- a. Work or operations performed by you or on your behalf; and

b. Materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.

“Your work” includes:

a. Warranties or representations made at anytime with respect to the fitness, quality, durability, performance or use of “your work”; and

b. The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions.

(R. 137.)

10. In May of 1997, BT Gallegos was working on the I-15/I-215 project in the area of 2600 South in Woodscross, Utah. (R. 164.)

11. Pursuant to the subcontract agreement, the work being performed by BT Gallegos at or near the time in question consisted of extending existing drainage lines approximately 15 feet and tying those in with the existing drainage system. (R. 164.)

12. Part of extending the drainage line required construction of large concrete drainage boxes. (R. 164.)

13. In order to construct these boxes, it was necessary to divert an ongoing stream of water from the pipes under I-15 into a drainage ditch before pouring the boxes. (R. 164.)

14. The work performed by BT Gallegos did not include construction or maintenance of the drainage or diversion ditches into which the ongoing stream of water was diverted. There were such drainage ditches constructed on the site and identified in the construction documents. However, those ditches were neither built nor maintained by BT Gallegos. (R. 164.)

15. On May 19 or 20, 1997, Jeff Maughan, the foreman for BT Gallegos, met with Richard Craig Jessop, the superintendent of Meadow Valley, and discussed the timing of the construction in question. Because of a threatening weather forecast, Mr. Maughan asked Mr. Jessop if Mr. Jessop wanted BT Gallegos to wait before beginning their work. (R. 164.)

16. At that meeting, Mr. Jessop directed Mr. Maughan to proceed immediately. (R. 164.)

17. The last forms were set and the last concrete was poured at about 3:00 pm on the afternoon of Friday, May 23, 1997. (R. 164.)

18. Under the plans and specifications applicable to the project, BT Gallegos was not permitted to strip the forms off the construction for 24 hours. (R. 164.)

19. When Mr. Maughan arrived at the work site at approximately 3:00 am on the morning of May 23, 1997, the work area was flooding. The drainage ditches, which had not been constructed by BT Gallegos, had failed and water was flowing into the parking lot of S.S. Marine, a business located nearby. (R. 165.) Mr. Maughan then went with Mr. Jessop so Mr. Jessop could get another piece of equipment, a large backhoe in order to shore up the failing drainage ditch. During this period of time, Mr. Maughan requested that Mr. Jessop remove an existing metal pipe to let water run directly into the newly formed box. This would allow the water to flow into an existing drainage system. Mr.

Jessop had not done so before because he said he did not want to ruin BT Gallegos' work.
(R. 165.)

20. By the time Mr. Jessop agreed to tear up the metal pipe, the drainage ditch had failed. Water from the ditch and another drainage pipe located south of the job site flooded an office building located to the south of the area where BT Gallegos had been working. (R. 165.)

21. According to Mr. Maughan, the flooding was a result of Mr. Jessop's direction to BT Gallegos to proceed with the construction in this area and his decision to divert the flood water into the drainage ditch instead of the existing system. Both of these decisions were made by Meadow Valley's superintendent Richard Jessop. (R. 165.)

22. As stated before, BT Gallegos did not construct the drainage ditch that flooded. (R. 164.)

23. Several businesses that were flooded apparently made claims against Meadow Valley for reimbursement of expenses associated with the flooding. (R. 142.)

24. To date, no lawsuits have been filed arising out of any of these claims. (R. 224 at page 7.)

25. On March 24, 1999, Meadow Valley filed a lawsuit against Transcontinental and BT Gallegos. (R. 1-6.)

26. Essentially, Meadow Valley alleged that BT Gallegos was negligent and BT Gallegos' negligence led to the flooding of area businesses. Furthermore, Meadow

Valley argued that Transcontinental owed Meadow Valley coverage to indemnify it for any losses associated with the flooding. (R. 1-6.)

27. On or about May 14, 1999, BT Gallegos and Transcontinental brought a motion to sever the complaints alleged against each. (R. 23-30.)

28. The order granting the motion to sever was entered on or about September 16, 1999. (R. 52-53.)

29. On or about December 1, 1999, Meadow Valley filed a motion for partial summary judgment. (R. 146-147.)

30. That motion was granted on or about March 2, 2000. (R. 216-218.)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

This Court should reverse the trial court's granting of summary judgment as there are disputed issues of material fact precluding summary judgment. Furthermore, summary judgment was inappropriate because the facts of the case, when viewed in the light most favorable to the Appellant, show that the damages claimed by the Appellee did not arise out of a claim covered by the Appellant. Finally, the Appellee's argument is contrary to Utah Statutory Law. Therefore, this Court should reverse the trial court's grant of summary judgment and remand this case for further proceedings on the merits.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THIS COURT SHOULD REVERSE THE TRIAL COURT'S GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT AS THERE ARE DISPUTED ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT PRECLUDING SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

Utah courts have clearly held that summary judgment is inappropriate where genuine issues of material facts exist. According to the Utah Supreme Court, summary judgment is appropriate only when no genuine issues of material fact exist and the moving party is entitled to judgment in matter of law. See Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 56(c). The Supreme Court held that, “in reviewing the summary judgment, we accord no difference to the trial court and review it’s ruling for correctness.” See Johnson v. Redevelopment Agency of Salt Lake County, 913 P.2d 723, 727 (Utah 1995); K & T, Inc. v. Koroulis, 888 P.2d 623, 627 (Utah 1994). Quoting Price Development Company v. Orem City, 995 P.2d 1237 (Utah 2000).

Furthermore, when reviewing summary judgment determinations, the Supreme Court considers “the facts and incidents in the light most favorable to the non-moving party.” See Nelson v. Salt Lake City, 919 P.2d 568, 571 (Utah 1996). With these standards in mind, this Court should clearly reverse the trial court’s grant of summary judgment and remand this case for trial.

There are several issues of material fact which preclude summary judgment.

Those issues are as follows:

1. Jeff Maughan, foreman for BT Gallegos, testified that BT Gallegos did not construct or maintain any drainage or diversion ditches. It was the drainage and diversion ditches which failed and caused the flooding in this case. (R. 164.) On the other hand, Richard Jessop, the Meadow Valley superintendent, testified that Gallegos constructed the diversion ditch to divert drainage around the construction area. (R. 118.)

2. Mr. Maughan testified that he asked Mr. Jessop if Mr. Jessop wanted BT Gallegos to wait before beginning their work as there was a threatening weather forecast. (R. 164.) Mr. Jessop testified that Mr. Maughan told him he would strip the form in time as there was heavy rain forecast for the following day. (R. 118.)

3. Mr. Maughan testified that Mr. Jessop refused to remove a drainage pipe which would have prevented the flooding until it was too late. (R. 164.) Mr. Jessop, on the other hand, testified that the decision to pull the pipe from the outlet box was a mutual decision between Mr. Maughan and Mr. Jessop and assigns no fault to himself on that point. (R. 119.)

4. In spite of the fact it would take five days to complete Meadow Valley's work, Mr. Jessop ordered Mr. Maughan to begin work on the project in the face of a forecast of inclement weather. (R. 164.)

5. Mr. Maughan testified that it was the acts and omissions of Meadow Valley which led to the flooding. (R. 165.)

6. Mr. Jessop testified that it was the acts and omissions of BT Gallegos which caused the flooding. (R. 119.)

Under the circumstances in this case, these disputed issues of material facts preclude summary judgment in this case.

POINT II

SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS INAPPROPRIATE BECAUSE THE FACTS OF THIS CASE, WHEN VIEWED IN THE LIGHT MOST FAVORABLE TO TRANSCONTINENTAL, SHOW THAT THE FLOODING DID NOT “ARISE OUT OF” BT GALLEGOS’ WORK.

This case involves the interpretation of an insurance contract. Under Utah law, “unless the language of an insurance contract is ambiguous or unclear, the court must construe it according to its plain and ordinary meaning.” First American Title Insurance Company v. JB Ranch, Inc., 966 P.2d 834 (Utah 1998). Furthermore, “an insurance policy is merely a contract between the insured and the insurer and is construed pursuant to the rules applied to ordinary contracts.” Alf v. State Farm Fire and Casualty Company, 850 P.2d 1272, 1274 (Utah 1993). Therefore, “the terms of insurance contracts...are to be interpreted according to their usually accepted meanings and should be read as a whole, in an attempt to harmonize and give affect to all of the contract provisions.” Nielsen v. O’Rielly, 848 P.2d 664, 665 (Utah 1992).

With these rules of interpretation in mind, it is essential to note that Meadow Valley is not an insured for all purposes under the policy of insurance issued by Transcontinental. Rather, Meadow Valley is given coverage only pursuant to a blanket additional insured endorsement with limited coverage. The terms of that limited blanket additional insured endorsement are as follows:

1. That person or organization is only an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of:
 - a. Premises you own, rent, lease, or occupy; or
 - b. "your work" for that additional insured by or for you.
2. The limits of insurance applicable to the additional insured are those specified in the written contract or agreement or in the declarations for this policy, whichever is less. These limits of insurance are inclusive and not in addition to the limits of insurance shown on the declarations. (R138.)

Therefore, according to the plain and unambiguous meaning of the blanketed additional insured endorsement, in order for there to be coverage under the terms of the policies of Meadow Valley's liability, the liability must "arise out of" "your work", meaning BT Gallegos' work. "Your work" is defined in a limited manner in the policy. According to the insurance policy "your work" is defined as follows:

"Your work" means:

- a. Work or operations performed by you or on your behalf; and
- b. Materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.

"Your work" includes:

- a. Warranties or representations made at anytime with respect to the fitness, quality, durability, performance or use of "your work"; and
- b. The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions.

(R. 137.)

This language is plain and unambiguous. The facts in this case, when viewed in the light most favorable to Transcontinental, show that this incident does not “arise out of” “[BT Gallegos’] work.” First, it is clear that the flooding was caused when a drainage ditch which had been constructed by someone other than by BT Gallegos failed. Since BT Gallegos did not construct or design the drainage ditch, the drainage ditch was not “[BT Gallegos’] work,” within the meaning of the policy. Again, the policy defines “your work” as work or operations performed by you or on your behalf. BT Gallegos had no duty under the subcontract to construct and design this ditch; therefore it was not “work performed by [BT Gallegos] or on [BT Gallegos’] behalf.”

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