2000

Meadow Valley Contractors, Inc. v. Transcontinental Insurance Company : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Summary judgment was properly granted in the present circumstances as the undisputed facts clearly indicate that the flooding in question arose from the construction of the drainage system pursuant to the Gallegos subcontract. The insurance contract to which Meadow Valley was named as an additional insured provides coverage to Meadow Valley because the flooding "arose out of" Gallegos' work. Whether Meadow Valley is covered under the Transcontinental policy does not require a determination of negligence or an assessment of fault. Rather, the overwhelming majority of cases dealing with the issue have held that when determining coverage under an insurance policy, the term "arising out of" is considered synonymous with "originating" or "come into being" as opposed to "proximate cause". Thus, the issues of fact asserted by Transcontinental are not genuine or material to the determination of coverage in this case, and the court appropriately applied the law to the relevant facts.

Finally, the provisions of Utah Code Ann. §13-8-1 are inapplicable to the insurance policy in question. Utah Code Ann. §13-8-1 applies to indemnification provisions contained in construction contracts, not contracts for insurance such as that issued by Transcontinental.

In accordance with the foregoing, this Court should affirm the Trial Court's grant of summary judgment.

ARGUMENT

I. THE DISTRICT COURT PROPERLY GRANTED SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

A. There are no Genuine Issues of Material Fact.

Summary judgment is appropriate where there is no genuine issue of material fact and a party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. See, Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 56(c). The fact that a party disputes facts "does not preclude summary judgment simply whenever some fact remains in dispute, but only when a material fact is genuinely controverted." Heglar Ranch, Inc., v. Stillman, 619 P.2d 1390, 1391 (Utah 1980); see also, Atkinson v. IHC Hospitals, 798 P.2d 733 at n.17 (Utah 1990) ("the rule on summary judgment may apply even when some fact remains in dispute; we affirm summary judgment when all material facts are not genuinely controverted.")

As will be shown below, the issues of fault, negligence and proximate causation are not relevant with respect to a determination of insurance coverage in this case. Those are issues which are, instead, relevant in relation to the litigation between Meadow Valley and Gallegos which was previously severed by the Trial Court on motion of Transcontinental.

Transcontinental has admitted all facts necessary for the Trial Court to make the legal determination in favor of coverage in this case. Transcontinental

admitted that Gallegos contracted to construct a concrete outlet drainage box pursuant to the subcontract. Transcontinental admitted that Gallegos diverted an existing stream of water around the concrete box and channeled the water into existing ditches. Transcontinental admits that the water which flooded the businesses in question originated from an existing stream of water which Gallegos channeled into the existing ditches. Finally, Transcontinental admits that a Gallegos employee (Mr. Maughan) worked with a Meadow Valley employee (Mr. Jessop) before and during the flooding incident. These employees were engaged in work specifically related to the construction work being performed pursuant to the Gallegos construction subcontract. These facts, and these facts alone, are sufficient for this Court to affirm the Trial Court's grant of summary judgment.

B. The Flood "Arose out of" Gallegos' Work.

Based upon well-settled precedent, Transcontinental's appeal fails for the same reason as its opposition failed below. The only question presented on appeal (despite Transcontinental's claim that there are facts in dispute) is a purely legal determination of the interpretation of an insurance contract. It is clear that the interpretation of contractual language contained within an insurance policy "is a question of law that may be resolved by the court in the context of a motion for summary judgment." Cypress Plateau Mining Corporation v. Commonwealth Ins. Co., 972 F.Supp. 1379, 1382 (D. Utah 1997). See also, West American Ins. Co. v. V&S, 145 F.3d 1224 (10th Cir. 1998).

The Transcontinental policy provides coverage for “an additional insured [Meadow Valley] with respect to liability arising out of: b. “your work” [Gallegos] for that additional insured [Meadow Valley] by or for you.” (R.138). The policy defines “your work” as follows:

- a. work or operations performed by you or on your behalf; and
- b. materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.

(R.137).

Transcontinental’s primary argument on appeal is the assertion that the flooding in this case was caused solely by the negligent actions of Meadow Valley’s employee, Richard Jessop, and, therefore, did not “arise out of” Gallegos’ work. Contrary to Transcontinental’s assertions, the majority of courts have held that the term “arising out of “ is not synonymous with the idea of causation or negligence. As such, whether or not Meadow Valley was negligent in part or in whole is not determinative, and does not relieve Transcontinental of its contractual duties to Meadow Valley under the insurance contract.

In Acceptance Ins. Co. v. Syufy Enterprises, 81 Cal. Rptr.2d 557 (Cal.App. 1st 1999), the court noted that the insurance policy to which the additional insured was named included the term “arising out of” rather than specifically limiting coverage for the additional insured to situations where the additional insured faced vicarious liability for negligence on the part of the named insured. In an effort to define “arising out of”, the Syufy court stated:

California courts have consistently given a broad interpretation to the terms “arising out of” or “arising from” in various kinds of insurance provisions. It is settled that this language does not import any particular standard of causation or theory of liability into an insurance policy. Rather, it broadly links a factual situation with the event creating liability and connotes only a minimal causal connection or incidental relationship. Id. at 562.

In finding coverage for the additional insured, the Syufy court held:

Insurance companies are free to, and commonly have, issued additional insured endorsements that specifically limit coverage to situations in which the additional insured is faced with vicarious liability for negligent conduct by the named insured. . . . when an insurer chooses not to use such clearly limited language in an additional insured clause, but instead grants coverage for liability ‘arising out of’ the named insured’s work, the additional insured is covered without regard to whether the injury was caused by the named insured or the additional insured.

Id. at 562-63. See also, Container Corp. of America v. Maryland Cas. Co., 707

So.2d 733, 736 (Fla. 1998) (if the insurance company wished to limit coverage to vicarious liability for negligence, it would have done so by clear policy language);

Merchant’s Ins. Co. of New Hampshire v. United States Fidelity and Guaranty,

143 F.3d 5, 10 (1st Cir. 1998) (if insurance company intends to limit coverage to

vicarious liability of a named insured, it is free to draft a policy that expressly

implements that intention); Casualty Ins. Co. v. Northbrook Property & Casualty

Ins. Co., 501 N.E.2d 812, 814-815 (Ill. App. Ct. 1986) (coverage does not depend

on the fault of a named insured).

In McIntosch v. Scottsdale Ins. Co., 992 F.2d 251 (10th Cir. 1993), Wichita Festivals, Inc. (“Festivals”) contracted to operate the 1988 Wichita River Festival for the City of Wichita (“Wichita”). Pursuant to the contract, Festivals purchased liability insurance from Scottsdale naming Wichita as an additional insured. The additional insured endorsement provided coverage “with respect to liability arising out of operations performed for such insured by or on behalf of the named insured.” Id. at 254. During the Festival, McIntosch was injured as a result of Wichita’s sole negligence. Wichita stipulated that it was 100% at fault and a judgment was awarded to McIntosch. Scottsdale denied coverage to Wichita on the theory that coverage was limited to situations where there was vicarious liability for the named insured’s negligence. The McIntosch court held that the additional insured endorsement does not limit coverage to cases where the additional insured is held vicariously liable for a named insured’s negligence. Id. at 254. The Court further held that Wichita was covered under the additional insured endorsement even though Wichita admitted liability. Id. at 255.

In Merchants Ins. Co. of New Hampshire, Inc. v. United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co., 143 F.3d 5 (1st Cir. 1998), a subcontractor purchased an insurance policy through USF&G and listed the general contractor as an additional insured. The insurance policy contained language strikingly similar to, if not exactly the same as, the language contained in the policy issued by Transcontinental in the present case. During the course of the construction project, one of the subcontractor’s employees was injured due to negligent actions of the general

contractor. The injured employee sued the general contractor, who then tendered the defense to USF&G. USF&G rejected the tender of defense under the theory that the additional insured endorsement did not afford coverage to the general contractor for the general contractor's own negligence. Id. at 7. The general contractor then settled with the injured employee through the general contractor's insurance carrier, Merchant's Insurance Company. Merchant's Insurance Company then sued USF&G in a subrogation cause of action. Id.

In holding that USF&G's policy provided coverage to the general contractor for the general contractor's own negligence, the First Circuit Court of Appeals held:

The usual meaning ascribed to the phrase "arising out of" is much broader than "caused by"; the former phrase is considered synonymous with "originate" or "come into being". . . . the expression "arising out of" indicates a wider range of causation than the concept of proximate causation and tort law.

Id. at 9 (citations omitted).

In some cases, the use of the term "arising out of" has been interpreted in favor of the insurance company. However, these cases use the same definition of the term as the majority view discussed above. In Toll Bridge Authority v. Aetna Ins. Co., 773 P.2d 906 (Wash. Ct. App. 1989), the Toll Bridge Authority ("TBA") purchased insurance for its operation of a ferry system. A passenger of the ferry was injured while disembarking from the ferry to the dock. The passenger sued TBA alleging negligence. TBA sought coverage from Aetna for indemnity. At issue was a policy exclusion for incidents "arising out of the

operations, maintenance, or use of any water craft” Id. at 908. The Trial Court granted Aetna’s motion for summary judgment upholding the exclusion.

In affirming the Trial Court’s ruling, the appellate court held that “[t]he phrase ‘arising out of’ is unambiguous and has a broader meaning than ‘caused by’ or ‘resulted from’. It is ordinarily understood to mean ‘originating from’, ‘having its origin in’, ‘growing out of’, or ‘flowing from’.” Id. at 908. Based on this definition, the court rejected TBA’s claim that there were issues of fact as to proximate cause and negligence which would preclude summary judgment. Id.

It is clear that whether Meadow Valley or Gallegos were negligent in whole or in part has no effect in the determination of coverage in this case. The issue before the court is whether the flooding in this case “arose out of”, “originated”, “came into being”, “grew out of” or “flowed from” work or operations being performed by Gallegos or on Gallegos’ behalf pursuant to the subcontract. Given the undisputed facts considered by the Trial Court, it is clear that the water which eventually flooded the businesses in question originated and “flowed from” work and operations which had been performed by or for Gallegos, pursuant to the subcontract. There is no question that the water originated from the existing stream of water for which the concrete outlet box was being constructed. (R.153, 154, 164, 186, and 188). In fact, Gallegos constructed a channel to divert this stream of water out of the storm drain into the existing ditch. (R.224 at 11). Accordingly, this Court should affirm the Trial Court’s order granting Meadow Valley’s motion for summary judgment.

C. The Cases Cited by Transcontinental Have Been Distinguished and/or Overruled.

Transcontinental relies on two Texas cases for the proposition that the flooding in this case did not “arise out of” Gallegos’ work or work performed on Gallegos’ behalf. These cases have been distinguished/overruled by subsequent Texas cases.

In Granite Const. Co. v. Bituminous Ins. Co., 832 S.W.2d 427 (Tex. App. 1992), a trucking company (Brown) subcontracted with Granite to haul asphalt from a site owned by Granite. The subcontract provided that “[a]ll material shall be F.O.B. [Brown’s] truck at the source,’ and that ‘[l]oading will be done at no cost to [Brown].’” Id. at 428. After being loaded by Granite, a Brown truck driver was injured when the truck he was driving overturned. Id. The truck driver sued Granite for negligently loading the truck. Id. Granite tendered the defense of the lawsuit to Bituminous, Brown’s insurer, based upon Granite’s status as an additional insured. Id. Bituminous refused the tender of defense and Granite filed an action for declaratory relief. Id. at 428-429. The Trial Court granted Bituminous’ motion for summary judgment and ruled that the Bituminous policy did not provide coverage for Granite. Id.

The Appellate Court affirmed the lower court’s ruling in favor of Bituminous by interpreting the policy language as providing insurance coverage for Granite only for “operations performed for Granite by or on behalf of Brown.” Id. at 430. Looking beyond the insurance policy, the Granite court held that Granite was

being sued for negligent loading of the Brown truck, operations which were expressly the duty of Granite under the contract between Granite and Brown. Thus, the court interpreted the policy as unambiguously excluding coverage. *Id.*

In 1994, two years after the Granite decision, the United States District Court for the District of Texas followed the Granite decision as representative of Texas law. See, Northern Insurance Co. of New York v. Austin Commercial Inc., 908 F.Supp. 436 (D. Tex. N.D. 1994). The Northern Insurance Company of New York court held that additional insureds are covered “only for claims involving direct negligence on the part of the named insured.” *Id.* at 437.

Transcontinental’s reliance on the Granite and Northern Insurance Company of New York cases is wholly without merit as subsequent Texas cases have accepted the majority view relating to interpretation of the term “arising out of.” Texas law began to change in 1999 when the Texas Court of Appeals dealt with an additional insurance endorsement contained in a commercial general liability policy which provided coverage to the additional insured for “liability **arising out of** the named insured’s operations.” Admiral Insurance Co. v. Trident Ngl Inc., 988 S.W.2d 451, 454 (Tex. App. 1999) (emphasis added). In Admiral, a subcontractor (K.D.) entered into a service agreement with Trident to service an oil and gas facility owned by Trident. *Id.* at 452. Pursuant to the employment contract, Trident was named as an additional insured to a CGL policy issued to K.D. by Admiral. *Id.* While in the process of unloading Trident’s tools from a Trident truck, a K.D. employee was seriously injured when a compressor

exploded. Id. at 453. Neither the K.D. employee “nor anyone employed by K.D. performed any act or failed to perform any act that caused the compressor to explode.” Id. The K.D. employee sued Trident for tort damages. Trident tendered the defense of the case to Admiral as an additional insured under the K.D. policy. Admiral rejected the tender of defense.

Admiral’s argument for rejecting Trident’s tender of defense was that “absent an affirmative act by K.D. that caused or contributed to the explosion, the additional insured endorsement in the policy . . . did not provide coverage.” Id. at 454. The Texas Appellate Court rejected Admiral’s argument as well as the holdings in the Granite and Northern Insurance Company of New York cases. Id. at fn.4. The Admiral court adopted “the rule followed by the majority of courts around the country.” Id. at 455. The Court specifically cited to and followed the holdings of Merchant’s v. USF&G and McIntosch v. Scottsdale previously discussed in this brief. In so doing, the Admiral court stated:

[f]or liability to “arise out of operations” of a named insured it is not necessary for the named insured’s acts to have “caused” the accident; rather, it is sufficient that the named insured’s employee was injured while present at the scene in connection with performing the named insured’s business, **even if the cause of the injury was the negligence of the additional insured.**

Id. at 454 (emphasis added).

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